
COMMENT REQUESTED

September 13, 2002

MEMORANDUM

To:

Deans of ABA-approved Law Schools


University Presidents


Chief Justices of State Supreme Courts


Bar Admission Authorities


Deans of Unapproved Law Schools
                      Leaders of Other Organizations Interested in ABA Accreditation   
                                 Processes

From:

John A. Sebert, Consultant on Legal Education



Subject:
Recommendations of the Task Force on Accreditation Processes

At its August 2002 meeting, the Council of the Section of Legal Education and Admissions to the Bar reviewed the Report of the Task Force on Accreditation Processes (which was chaired by Professor E. Thomas Sullivan, the current Chair of the Council).  The Report of the Task Force is attached for your review and comment.  The Report is also posted on the Section’s website:  http://www.abanet.org/legaled/accreditation/acinfo.html.  

The Task Force makes three major sets of recommendations:

1. Frequency of Site Evaluations.  The Task Force recommends that a full site evaluation of fully-approved schools be conducted once every ten years (rather than the current cycle of once every seven years), and that in the middle of the ten-year period a five-year review be conducted of every fully approved law school.  The five-year review would be based on a written update from the school of its most recent self-study, a “five-year review questionnaire” that will be much less detailed than the current Site Evaluation Questionnaire, and other information available to the Accreditation Committee.  A detailed description of the Task Force’s vision of the five-year review process is contained in Part IV of the Report, at pages 10 and 11.  The Task Force further recommends that the site evaluation undertaken at the ten-year point would be a full site evaluation, similar to the ones that schools now undergo every seven years.  The Task Force also recommends that when a school is newly granted full approval, the school have a full site evaluation in the fifth year after receipt of full approval. Thereafter, the newly approved school would fall under the site evaluation schedule described above.  (Under present procedures, a school undergoes a full site evaluation in the third year after receiving full approval and thereafter every seven years.)

2.   Review of Post- and Non-J.D. Programs.  In light of the very limited oversight that the Standards provide for post- and non-J.D. programs, the Task Force makes four central recommendations (contained in Part V of the Task Force Report):

That initial acquiescence in the establishment of post- and non-J.D. programs be granted on the paper record and without an initial site visit (similar to the process for approving the establishment of new foreign summer programs);

That an evaluation of a new post- or non-J.D. program occur during the first academic year that students are enrolled in the program, and that whether an actual on-site evaluation is necessary would be determined after review of documents and other information provided by the school; 

That (similar to current procedures) any subsequent review of an existing post- or non-J.D. program be undertaken as a part of the regular evaluation of the school; and

That the power to acquiesce in the establishment of a new post- or non-J.D. program be delegated to the Accreditation Committee subject to the usual rights of appeal to the Council.

3.
Financing of the Accreditation Project.  The Task Force recommends the adoption of an annual fee system for fully approved law schools and for foreign summer programs beginning in fiscal year 2003-04.  This revised fee arrangement will provide more stable and consistent financial support for the Accreditation Project and will allocate more equitably the cost of accreditation activities between J.D. programs, on the one hand, and foreign and post-J.D. programs.  These annual fees would replace the annual site evaluation process fee, the site evaluation fees that fully approved schools pay, and all fees associated with site evaluations of foreign programs other than fees for an initial application for approval of a foreign program.  These proposals are set forth in Part VI of the Task Force Report. 

After extensive discussion at its August meeting, the Council voted to authorize broad distribution of the Report of the Task Force on Accreditation Processes for comment, with notice that the Council is considering taking action on the issues raised and recommendations contained in the Task Force Report at the February or June 2003 meetings of the Council.

The recommendations of the Task Force would, if adopted, represent by far the most significant changes in the process for law school accreditation that have occurred in many years.  Thus the Council seeks and strongly encourages comment from many sources on these proposals.  In particular, the Council has indicated that it wishes wide comment on the following issues:

· Should the review cycle for fully approved schools be changed in general, as the Task Force recommends, to a ten-year cycle with an interim five-year review?  Is the proposed ten-year interval between full site evaluations appropriate?

· The Task Force’s vision of the five-year review process (see pages 10 and 11 of the Report) involves the exercise of significant discretion by the Accreditation Committee concerning the scope and nature of the five-year review for each fully approved school.  Is that discretion appropriate or (for example) should at least one site evaluator be sent to every fully approved school in conjunction with the five-year review?

· Are the Task Force’s recommendations concerning oversight of post- and non-J.D. programs appropriate?

· Is the proposed shift from a financing system based on periodic site evaluation fees to one based on annual fees appropriate?  Is the proposed shifting of some of the costs of the Accreditation Project to J.D. programs from post-J.D. and foreign programs appropriate?

The Council encourages and solicits comment on these proposals by letter, e-mail or through appearances at the hearings that will be conducted during the next few months.  Hearings will be held at least at the AALS Annual Meeting in Washington, D.C., in January 2003 and at the ABA Mid-Year Meeting in Seattle, Washington, in February 2003.  A schedule of those hearings and any others that are held will be distributed to all addressees of this memorandum as soon as the schedule is established.

Written comments are particularly useful.  Such comments should be sent to Deputy Consultant Barry A. Currier by mail at American Bar Association, 750 North Lake Shore Drive, Chicago, IL 60611 or by e-mail at currierb@staff.abanet.org. Persons who appear at a hearing are encouraged to submit written comments at the end of their oral testimony. All comments made will be provided to the Task Force on Accreditation Processes and the Council.  Since it is possible that the Council will take action on the Task Force recommendations at its February 2003 meeting, we ask that written comments concerning these proposals be received by December 15, 2002.

Finally, and in addition to the maters on which the Council is seeking comment, the Council has asked that we disseminate information concerning an experiment that the Council has asked the Accreditation Committee to undertake this year.  Responding to a recommendation of the Task Force on Accreditation Processes, the Council has directed that, to the extent possible, the chair of a site evaluation team be given the opportunity to review and comment on the findings of fact (but not the conclusions or requested action) in the draft action letter resulting from the visit of the chair’s team before the Accreditation Committee takes action on that letter. The Task Force believes that the site team chair’s review of the draft findings of fact may on occasion permit clarification of facts that were not clear in the report or avoid mistakes in the letter that are based on misperceptions caused by a mis-reading of the report.  The Council has asked the Accreditation Committee to report to the Council at the end of the academic year the results of this experiment and the Committee’s recommendations concerning whether, and if so how, to continue a process of site team chair review of draft findings of fact.

The Council appreciates your careful review of these important recommendations and looks forward to receiving your comments.

Attachment.

Cc:
Council of the Section of Legal Education and Admissions to the Bar

Task Force on Accreditation Processes

Accreditation Committee
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